
Ben Bartlett  
Councilmember, City of Berkeley, District 3 
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PHONE 510-981-7130, 
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CONSENT CALENDAR 
November 13, 2018 

 
To:                Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:           Councilmember Ben Bartlett & Kriss Worthington 
Subject:  Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning Department 

on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an 
Equity Program  

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Council provides requested direction to the Planning Department on how to 
proceed with the Equity Program recommended by the Cannabis Commission in the 
October 9, 2018 staff report;. with the following specifications:  
Recommendation of creating 1 new dispensary license for equity applicants  ing 
allowing 4 equity applicants.  
It is envisioned as new licenses are created, such as, delivery, manufacturing, and 
micro-business, permits will be reserved for equity applicants for each new category. 
  
BACKGROUND   
At the City Council special meeting on October 9, 2018, the Planning and Development 
Department and the City Manager requested direction from the Council on six main 
issues: quotas, buffers, discretion, equity, retail nurseries, and residential collectives. 
There were clear recommendations for many of the options presented by staff that work 
to complete Berkeley’s comprehensive cannabis ordinances for Council consideration.  
 
However, at the special meeting, the City Council did not provide specific 
recommendations regarding the creation of the proposed Equity Program and the 
number of equity and non-equity applicants that are able to apply. 
 
On March 15, 2018, the Cannabis Commission held a meeting and made 
recommendations for the implementation of the City’s Equity Program for Cannabis 
retailers. Recommendation No.1 outlines a clear need for an “Equity-based selection 
process.” This will “prioritize businesses that are at least 51% owned by equity 
candidates” and ensure that those negatively affected by past Cannabis prohibition 
have a chance to enter the Berkeley Cannabis business and reap the benefits of the 
growing industry. This selection process will provide access to a group of business 
owners that would otherwise face significant barriers. 
 
On October 9, 2018, the Planning Department and City Manager recommended slight 
changes to the Cannabis Commission’s considerations while defining equity candidates 
in the same way as in the Commission proposal:  
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“Staff recommends an equity program that would prioritize businesses that at are 
at least 40% owned by equity candidates... These candidates would be selected 
through a lottery and allowed time to identify and secure locations before 
applications from non-equity candidates would be considered.”  
 

Firstly, this item seeks to support the Planning Department and the City Manager’s 
recommendation on the issue of equity. Berkeley is well behind the curve on using a 
specific equity process in the selection of retailers. Other cities such as Oakland and 
San Francisco have already implemented policies that prioritize equity candidates in 
their selection processes, which seek to allow impacted and historically disenfranchised 
groups to enter the Cannabis industry with little to no barriers. To bridge the gap 
between our City and others, the Council should move forward with the Cannabis 
Commission’s proposal for an Equity Program as amended by the Planning Department 
and City Manager.  

 
Secondly, this item also provides the Council with the opportunity to provide a more 
clear direction on how to proceed with the number of Cannabis retail establishments. 
The clear direction being that the Council allows one four equity and two non-equity 
applicants to apply to become storefront Cannabis retailers and that the City processes 
these applicants within 2 years of their application.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION:  
Minimal.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY:  
No significant impact. 
 
CONTACT PERSON:  
Councilmember Ben Bartlett  510-981-7130 
Malik Diaw     mdiaw17@berkeley.edu  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Equity Program Staff Report, Cannabis Commission Meeting 3-15-18 
2. Options for Cannabis Regulations and Cannabis Business Selection Process 

Staff Report, City Council Special Meeting 10-09-18 
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